#### Present:

Councillor L Williams (in the Chair)

Councillors

I Coleman Humphreys

Hutton O'Hara Robertson BEM D Scott

## In Attendance:

Mr Lennox Beattie, Executive and Regulatory Support Manager Mr Ian Curtis, Legal Officer Mrs Bernadette Jarvis, Senior Democratic Governance Adviser Mr Gary Johnston, Head of Development Management Miss Susan Parker, Senior Planning Officer Mr Latif Patel, Network Planning and Projects Manager

#### **1 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST**

There were no declarations of interest on this occasion.

## 2 MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 17 JULY 2018

The Committee considered the minutes of the last meeting held on 17 July 2018.

**Resolved:** That the minutes of the meeting held on 17 July 2018 be approved and signed by the Chairman as a correct record.

## **3 PLANNING/ENFORCEMENT APPEALS LODGED AND DETERMINED**

The Committee noted that an appeal had been lodged by Cardtronics UK Ltd against the refusal of planning permission for the retention of an ATM on the Dickson Road frontage of the premises at Café 15, 15 Cocker Street, Blackpool.

**Resolved:** To note the planning appeal lodged.

#### **4 PLANNING ENFORCEMENT UPDATE REPORT - JUNE 2018**

The Committee considered a report detailing the planning enforcement activity undertaken within Blackpool during June 2018.

The report stated that 53 new cases had been registered for investigation, 12 cases had been resolved by negotiation without recourse to formal action and 18 cases were closed as there was either no breach of planning control found, no action was appropriate or it was not considered expedient to take action.

The report also provided comparative information for the same period last year.

**Resolved:** To note the outcome of the cases set out in the report and to support the actions of the Service Manager, Public Protection Department, in authorising the notices.

## **5 PLANNING ENFORCEMENT AND UPDATE REPORT - JULY 2018**

The Committee considered a report detailing the planning enforcement activity undertaken within Blackpool during July 2018.

The report stated that 44 new cases had been registered for investigation, 16 cases had been resolved by negotiation without recourse to formal action and 18 cases were closed as there was either no breach of planning control found, no action was appropriate or it was not considered expedient to take action.

The report also provided comparative information for the same period last year.

**Resolved:** To note the outcome of the cases set out in the report and to support the actions of the Service Manager, Public Protection Department, in authorising the notices.

## **6 PLANNING APPLICATIONS AND APPEALS PERFORMANCE**

Mr Johnston presented the planning applications and appeals performance report. He advised Members that the Government currently assessed performance over a two year period from 1 October 2016 to 30 September 2018. He referred to the information in the Update Note that reported performance from the start of the two year period up to 10 August 2018 as 91% within 13 weeks or an agreed extension of time for major applications and 92% within eight weeks or an agreed extension of time for minor applications against targets of 60% and 70% respectively. He advised on the expectation that the performance would remain above target for the remainder of the two year assessment period.

The performance figures for July were also reported in the Update Note as 100% within target or an agreed extension of time for both major and minor applications.

Resolved: To note the report.

## **7 REVISED MEMBER AND OFFICER PROTOCOL**

Mr Beattie, Executive and Regulatory Manager, presented the draft Member and Officer Protocol which had been revised by officers following a focus group training session undertaken by the Committee on 8 March 2018. The aim of the revised Protocol was to develop a clear, useable and concise document for Members of the Committee and Officers.

At the training session Members had also expressed a desire to increase the time limit for public speaking and for consistency, apply the same time limit to ward councillors with the aim of allowing sufficient time for representations whilst maintaining focus. Members of the Committee were asked to consider recommending to Council approval of the revised Protocol and changes to time limits for public speaking.

In response to a question, Mr Beattie reported on the intention to submit the

recommendation to Council at its meeting in September 2018, subject to approval by the Committee.

## **Resolved:**

- 1. To recommend Council to approve as part of its Constitution the revised Member and Officer Protocol for Planning.
- 2. To recommend Council to adopt the revised public speaking arrangements outlined in the report, namely that the period for objectors and applicants be increased to seven minutes and the period for ward councillors be similarly limited to seven minutes.

## 8 PLANNING APPLICATION 18/0333 - SOUTH PIER, PROMENADE, BLACKPOOL

The Committee considered planning application 18/0333 seeking the retention of a log flume on land to the north of South Pier.

The Chairman reported on the request by the applicant for deferral of the application due to the unavailability of the applicant's agent. She advised the Committee that Mr Laister, acting on behalf of Blackpool Pleasure Beach, had requested to speak in objection to the deferral.

Mr Laister, acting on behalf of Blackpool Pleasure Beach, raised an objection to the deferral. The main reasons were that deferral would result in a further extension in the length of time that the log flume would be in place, following the expiration of the temporary permission and that this would also cover the remainder of the main holiday season. A further concern related to the requirement for works being undertaken on the pier that had formed part of the justification for granting temporary permission and these had not been undertaken by the applicant. He asked the Committee to consider refusing the applicant's request to defer.

The Committee considered the applicant's request to defer and the objections made by Mr Laister on behalf of Blackpool Pleasure Beach. Whilst the Committee acknowledged the concerns raised by the objector, Members were also mindful that this was the first request for deferral made by the applicant and in the interests of fairness it was appropriate to allow the opportunity for the applicant's agent to attend and speak on the applicant's behalf. Members felt that, should the Committee be minded to defer the application, it would need to be considered at the next meeting. Members also requested that it be made clear to the applicant that any further requests for deferral would not be looked upon sympathetically.

**Resolved:** To defer the application to the next meeting on 18 September 2018.

Background papers: Applications, plans and replies to consultations on the application.

# 9 PLANNING APPLICATION 18/0077 - LAND ADJACENT 27 STOCKYDALE ROAD, BLACKPOOL

The Committee considered planning application 18/0077 for the erection of four detached dwellinghouses, two with integral garages and two with detached garages, with

associated landscaping and access from Stockydale Road on the land adjacent to 27 Stockydale Road.

Miss Parker, Senior Planning Officer, provided the Committee with an overview of the application and presented an aerial view of the site, site location and layout plans and elevational plans of the proposed dwellinghouses. She advised that permission had previously been granted for residential development on the former Baguleys Garden Centre site and that this included the application site. The Committee was reminded that in August 2017 it had refused permission for four houses on the application site on highway safety grounds and Miss Parker reported on the amendments made to the plans in terms of improved visibility and provision of safer pedestrian access in response to concerns raised at that time. The scale of the development had also been amended to better reflect the character of this part of Marton Moss and reduce potential traffic congestion and parking issues. Miss Parker referred to the ongoing dispute over land ownership and reminded Members that land ownership was not a planning consideration. Miss Parker reported on the Local Planning Authority's duty in terms of ecology and biodiversity and the opportunity to address concerns through appropriate conditions.

Ms Baron, public objector, spoke against the application and raised concerns mainly relating to the proposed access from Stockydale Road which in her view would result in a potential increase in traffic and adversely impact the safety of pedestrians and cyclists. A further concern related to the impact on the rural environment from the proposed removal of the hedgerow.

Mr Boniface, the applicant's agent, spoke in support of the application and reported on the consultation undertaken with the Council's highways and planning officers to address concerns and reported on amendments made to the plans to improve highway and pedestrian safety. In his view the proposal represented sustainable development of an acceptable size and scale with no highway safety or environmental impact.

In response to questions from the Committee, Mr Patel, Network Planning and Projects Manager, reported his view that the proposal met required standards in terms of level of car parking provision and road width and considered that the increase in vehicle movement from the proposed development could be accommodated on the highway. He acknowledged that during recent work on Midgeland Road, the volume of traffic on Stockydale Road had increased due to drivers who knew the area using it as a short cut.

The Committee carefully considered the application. It expressed concern at the current uncertainty with regards to land ownership, however, it noted that this was not a planning consideration. Miss Parker advised of the opportunity, if permission was granted, to attach a Grampian condition to prevent development on land not controlled by the applicant.

The Committee had regard to the amendments made to the proposal to address highway safety concerns and whilst it appreciated that the principle of residential development had been established at the site, Members considered that the access onto a narrow road, limited visibility due the bend in the road and the presence of hedgerows would exacerbate the existing highway safety issues for vehicles and pedestrians, nothwithstanding the proposed footpath provision.

**Resolved:** To refuse the application for the reasons set out in the Appendix to the minutes.

Background papers: Applications, plans and replies to consultations on the application.

## Chairman

(The meeting ended 6.40 pm)

Any queries regarding these minutes, please contact: Bernadette Jarvis Senior Democratic Governance Adviser Tel: (01253) 477212 E-mail: bernadette.jarvis@blackpool.gov.uk